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A Supplemental Prosecutive Summary is being submitted:
at this time due to the proximity of trial in this matter. This -
Supple-antal Prosecutive Summary consists of informgtiom dews}
o Bubsequent to the prosecutive summary report of 8A
i 12-19-64 at Jackson, and contains information which was abstr
>m Jackson report of SA dated 1-24-86S. b‘?C- i

' n‘,.

;" - Jadtson (‘&4-1)

L 4 D£b. D mae -.r-

AT é@'&?l
[N

K=

G-9¢8 v d
R A <kt

/ec &- .Scu-m4 :
7 9 MAR 151965 N




P et it ki et i e R e e

JN 44-1

All persons ntacted during the course of this

investigation were advised that this inquiry was being con-
ducted at the specific request of Mr. JOHN DOAR, Assistant
Attorney General, Civil Rights Division, U. S. Department of-
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One extra copy of this report will remain in the

Jackson Division in the event of future need for this report

by the Atlanta Division where JAMES EDWARD JORDAN's case has

been transferred under Rule Twenty.
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF }fJSTICE
FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Copyto: 1 - USA, Jackson, Mississippi

Repot ok SA R mne Offic: JACKSON
Date: 3 - g- g g
Field Office File Nos - 44~1 Bureay File Nox  44-25706

e  BERNARD L. AKIN; JIMMY (NMN) ARLEDGE;
HORACE DOYLE BARNETTE; TRAVIS MARYN BARNETTE;
OLEN LOVELL BURRAGE; JAMES T. HARRIS; FRANK J.
HERNDON; JAMES E. JORDAN; EDGAR RAY KILLEN;
Xhgx BILLY WAYNE POSEY; CECIL RAY PRICE; LAWRENCE
ANDREW RAINEY; ALTON WAYNE ROBERTS; JERRY MC GREW
SHARPE; JIMMY SNOWDEN; JIMMY LEE TOWNSEND; HERMAN
fwrosz TUCKER; RICHARD ANDREW WILLIS
JAMES EARL CHANEY; MICHAEL HENRY SCHWERNER;
ANDREW GOODMAN ~ VICTIMS

Character: CIVIL RIGHIS - ELECTION LAWS; JUVENILE DELINQUENCY ACT

SUPPLEMENTAL
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PROSECUTIIVE SUMMARY

Synopsis: The Federal Grand Jury which convened 1-11-65 at
Jackson, Mississippl, to hear testimony concerning the
abduction and murder cn 6-21-64 of JAMES EARL CHANEY
MICHAEL HENRY SCHWERNER and ANDREW GOODMAN, three civ:ll
rights workers, in Neshoba County, Mississippil, returned
True Bill 1-15-65 charging BERNARD L. AKIN, JIMMY (NMN)
ARLEDGE, HORACE DOYLE BARNETITE, TRAVIS MARYN BRARNETTE, OLEN
LOVELL BURRAGE, JAMES T, HARRIS, FRANK J, HERNDON, JAMES E.
JORDAN, EDGAR RAY KILLEN, BILLY WAYNE POSEY, CECIL RAY PRICE,
LAWRENCE ANDREW RAINEY, ALTON WAYNE ROBERTS, JERRY MC GREW
SHARPE, JIMMY SNOWDEN, JIMMY LEE TOWNSEND, HERMAN TUCKER
and RICHARD ANDREW WILLIS with violations of Title 18,
U.S. Code, Section 241, with Conspiracy under Section 371,
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IN 44-1

Arrest warrants were issued by U. S. District Court
Clerk and all Subjects, with exception of HORACE DOYLE BARNETTE
and JAMES EDWARD JORDAN, were arrested by U. 5. Marshals on
1-16-65 ard arraigned before U. §. Commissioner ESTHER CARTER
1-16-65, who released them under $5,750 bond. HORACE DOYLE
BAFN;ITE was arrested by Bureau Agents, Shreveport, La., 1-18-65,
arraigned before U. S. Commissioner, Shreveport, La., and
released on $5,000 bond the same date.

"AMES EDWARD SORDAN voluntarily appeared, in response
to a 3erch Warrant issued 1-15-65 in the Southern Distri€t of
Miss,, at Atlanta, Ga., 1-18-65, arraigned before U, S. Com-
missiorer, Atlanta, Ga., and released under $5,000 bond.

On 1-24-65, U, S. District Judge HAROLD COX, Southern
District of Miss., signed an order authorizing the Clerk of the
U. S. District Court for Southern District of Miss. to transfer
cause of JAMES EDWARD JORDAN from Southern District of Miss. to

the Northern District of Ga. for plea of guilty or nolo contendere,

e A e e e e

On 2-24-65, U. S, District Judge COX sustained Defen-
dants' motions to dismiss indictments charging Defendants with
viclation of Title 18, U, S. Code, Section 241.

On 2-25-65, Judge GOX sustained the first count of ™
the indictment for Conspiracy under Title 18, U, S, Code, Sec-
tion 371 to violate Title IR o, s, Code QQPF{DH 7&2 nqa{ngt
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all Defendants and ruled that the second, third, and fourth
counts of the indictment were valid against LAWRENCE RAINEY,
CECIL PRICE, and RICHARD ANDREW WILLIS, but not against the
other Defendants. .

- JAMES EDWARD JORDAN reiterated his statement that he
was not physically present when Victims SCHWERNER, GOODMAN and

ForT A WTEwE PP R vy falcemar

CHANEY were shot on the gravel road near Highway 1

delphia, Miss.
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at Jackson, ﬂlbblbprpL, to hear testimony concerning the
abduction and murder on June 21, 1964, in Neshoba County,
Mississippi, of three civil rights workers, JAMES EARL CHANEY,
MICHAEL HENRY SCHWERNER and ANDREW GOODMAN.

On January 15, 1965, a true bill was returned by
the Federal Grand Jury charging the following persons with
violations of Title 18, United States Code, 241, 242 and 371:

CECIL RAY PRICE
BERNARD L, AKIN

JIMMY ARLEDGE

HORACE DOYLE BARNETTE
TRAVIS MARYN BARNETTE
OLEN LOVELL BURRAGE
JAMES T, HARRIS

FRALI ‘Jl.\l J . HEP\LI ﬂulvl"'}"

JAMES E. JORDAN

EDGAR RAY KILLEN

BILLY WAYNE POSEY
LAWRENCE ANDREW RAINEY
ALTON WAYNE ROBERTS
JERRY MC GREW SHARPE
JIMMY SNOWDEN

JIMMY LEE TOWNSEND

HERMAN TUCKER
RICHARD ANDREW WILLIS

The indictments returned by the Grand Jury are set
forth as follows:

"IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF MISSISSIPPI

WIS S L ALLIARNAY il e BV M P e T RS S TR )

EASTERN DIVISION
"UNITED STATES OF AMERICA :

V. CRIMINAL NO. 5215

“CECIL RAY PRICE
BERNARD L. AKIN

18 U.S.C. 241

/4




HORACE DOYLE BARNETTE
TRAVIS MARYN BARNEITE

ATTAT TAITRTT DIMDAAD
VLLHN LUVUYLLL DUDNDAGCE

JAMES T, HARRIS
FRANK J. HERNDON
JAMES E. JORDAN
EDGAR RAY KILLEN
BILLY WAYNE POSEY
LAWRENCE ANDREW RAINEY
ALTON WAYNE ROBERTS
JERRY MC GREW SHARPE
JIMMY SNOWDEN

JIMMY LEE TOWNSEND
HERMAN TUCKER

RICHARD ANDREW WILLIS
"THE GRAND JURY CHARGES AND PRESENTS:

1. At all times herein mentioned Lawrence
Andrew Rainey was sheriff of Neshoba County,
Mississippi; Cecil Ray Price was deputy sheriff of
Neshoba County, Mississippi; Richard Andrew Willis
was a patrolman of the Police Department of Philadelphia,
Mississippi; and each was acting by virtue of his
official position and under color of the laws of the
State of Mississippi. '

"2, Commencing on or about January 1, 1964,
and continuing to on or about December 4, 1964, Cecil
Ray Price, Bernard L. Akin, Jimmy Arledge, Horace Doyle
Barnette, Travis Maryn Barnette, Olen Lovell Burrage,
James T. Harris, Frank J. Herndon, James E, Jordan,
Edgar Ray Killen, Billy Wayne Posey, Lawrence Andrew
Rainey, Alton Wayne Roberts, Jerry McGrew Sharpe,
Jimmy Snowden, Jimmy Lee Townsend, Herman Tucker,
and Richard Andrew Willis, within the Southern District
of Mississippi, conspired together, with each other
and with other persons to the Grand Jury unknown,
to injure, oppress, threaten and intimidate Michaelflﬁ

3 5% -5




Henry Schwerner, James Earl Chaney and Andrew
Goodman, each a citizen of the United States,
in the free exercise and enjoyment of' the right
and privilege secured to them by the Fourteenth
Amendment to the Constitution of the United
States not to be deprived of 1ife or liberty
without due process of law by persons acting
under color of the laws of Mississippi.

i3, It was a part of the plan and purpose of
the conspiracy that Cecil Ray Price, while having
Michael Henry Schwerner, James Earl Chaney and
Andrew Goodman in his custody in the Neshoba County
Jail located in Philadelphia, Mississippi, would
release them from custody at such time that he,
Cecil Ray Price, Jimmy Arledge, Horace Doyle
Barnette, Travis Maryn Barnette, Alton Wayne Roberts,
Jimmy Snowden, James E., Jordan, Billy Wayne Posey,
Jerry McGrew Sharpe and Jimmy Lee Townsend could
and would intercept Michael Henry Schwerner, James
Earl Chaney and Andrew Goodman upon their leaving
the area of the Neshoba County Jail, and threaten,
assault, shoot and kill them.

"In violation of Section 241 of Title 18 of

the United States Code.

"A TRUE BILL:

-~

"
United States Attorney

Special Attorney
Department of Justice

Foreman_pf ;hg
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"IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF MISSISSIPPI
EASTERN DIVISION
"UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

v,

CECIL RAY PRICE
BERNARD L. AKIN
JIMMY ARLEDGE :
HORACE DOYLE BARNETTE
TRAVIS MARYN BARNEITE
OLEN LOVELL BURRAGE
JAMES T. HARRIS

FRANK J. HERNDON
JAMES E. JORDAN
EDGAR RAY KILLEN
BILLY WAYNE POSEY
LAWRENCE ANDREW RAINEY
ALTON WAYNE ROBERTS
JIMMY MC GREW SHARPE
JIMMY SNOWDEN

JIMMY LEE TOWNSEND
HERMAN TUCKER
RICHARD ANDREW WILLIS

CRIMINAL NO._ 5216

18 U.S.C, 242, 371

"THE GRAND JURY CHARGES AND PRESENTS:

FIRST COUNT
"], At all times herein mentioned Lawrence Andrew
Rainey was sheriff of Neshoba County, Mississippi;
Cecil Ray Price was deputy sheriff of Neshoba County,
‘Mississippi; Richard Andrew Willls was a patrolman of
the Police Department of Philadelphia, Mississippi;
and each was acting byvirtue of his official position

and under color of the laws of the State of Mississippi.g}
435
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2. Commencing on or about January 1, 1964, and
continuing to on or about December 4, 1964, Cecil
Ray Price, Bernard L. Akin, Jimmy Arledge, Horace
Doyle Barnette, Travis Maryn Barnette, Olen Lovell
Burrage, James T. Harris, Frank J. Herndon, James E.
Jordan, Edgar Ray Killen, Billy Wayne Posey, Lawrence
Andrew Rainey, Alton Wayne Roberts, Jerry McGrew
Sharpe, Jimmy Snowden, Jimmy Lee Townsend, Herman
Tucker, and Richard Andrew Willis, within the
Southern District of Mississippl, conspired together,
with each other, and with other persons to the Grand
Jury unknown, to commit an offense against the United
States in violation of Section 242 of Title 18 of

the Unit ed States Code, that is to say that they
conspired to wilfully subject Michael Henry Schwerner,
James Earl Chaney and Andrew Goodman, each an
inhabitant of the State of Mississippi, to the
deprivation of their right, privilege and immunity
secured and protected by the Fourteenth Amendment

to the Constitution of the United States not to be
summarily punished without due process of law by
persons acting under color of the laws of the State
of Mississippi.

"3, 1t was a part of the plan and purpose of the
conspiracy that Cecil Ray Price, while having Michael
Henry Schwerner, James Earl Chaney and Andrew Goodman
in custody in the Neshoba County Jail located in
Philadelphia, Mississippl, would release them from
custody at such time that he, Cecil Ray Price, Jimmy
Arledge, Horace Doyle Barnette, Travis Maryn Barnette,
_Alton Wayne Roberts, Jimmy Snowden, James E. Jordan,
Billy Wayne Posey, Jerry McGrew Sharpe and Jimmy Lee
Townsend could and would intercept Michael Henry
Schwerner, James Earl Chaney and Andrew Goodman upon
their leaving the area of the Neshoba County Jail, %\
and threaten, assault, shoot and kill them. %
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Overt Acts

"Pursuant to the conspiracy and in furtherance of
the objects thereof, the following defendants committed
the following overt acts within the Southern District
of Mississippi:

"1l. On June 21, 1964, Cecil Ray Price detained
Michael Henry Schwerner, James Earl Chaney and Andrew
Goodman in the Neshoba County Jail located in
Philadelphia, Mississippl, after sundown on that day
until approximately 10:30 P.M.

2. On June 21, 1964, Billy Wayne Posey drove an
automobile south on Highway 19 from Philadelphia,
Mississippi.

"3, On June 21, 1964, Cecil Ray Price drove an
automobile south on Highway 19 from Philadelphia,
Mississippi.

4. On June 21, 1964, Cecil Ray Price removed
Michael Henry Schwerner, James Earl Chaney and Andrew
Goodman from an automobile stopped on Highway 492
between Highway 19 and Union, Mississippi, and placed
them in an official automobile of the Neshoba County
Sheriff's office.

"5, Oun June 21, 1964, Cecil Ray Price transported
Michael Henry Schwerner, James Earl Chaney and Andrew
Goodman from a place on State Highway 492 between

- Highway 19 and Union, Mississippi, to a place on an

unpaved road intersecting Highway 19 south of
Philadelphia, Mississippi.
e

"6, On June 21, 1964, Billy Wayne Posey drove L}}“
an automobile bearing the bodies of Michael Henry
Schwerner, James Earl Chaney and Andrew Goodman
from'a place on the unpaved road intersecting Highw%¥\19
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south of Philadelphia, Mississippi, to the vicinity
of the construction site of an earthen dam, located
near Highway 21, approximately 5 miles southwest of
Philadelphia, Mississippi.

"In violation of Section 371 of Title 18 of the
United States Code.

SECOND COUNT

"On or about June 21, 1964, in Neshoba County,
Mississippi, and within the Southern District of
Mississippi, Lawrence Andrew Rainey, sheriff of
Neshoba County, Mississippi, Cecil Ray Price, deputy
sheriff of Neshoba County, Mississippi, Richard Andrew
Willis, a patrolman of the Police Department of
Philadelphia, Mississippi, Bernard L, Akin, Jimmy
Arledge, Horace Doyle Barnette, Travis Maryn Barnette,
Olen Lovell Burrage, James T. Harris, Frank J. Herndon,
James E. Jordan, Edgar Ray Killen, Billy Wayne Posey,
Alton Wayne Roberts, Jerry McGrew Sharpe, Jimmy Snowden,
Jimmy Lee Townsend and Herman Tucker, while acting
under color of the laws of the State of Mississippi,
did wilfully assault, shoot and kill Michael Henry
Schwerner, an inhabitant of the State of Mississippi,
then and there in the custody of Cecil Ray Price,
for the purpose and with the intent of punishing
Michael Henry Schwerner summarily and without due
process of law and for the purpose and with the
intent of punishing Michael Henry Schwerner for
conduct not so punishable under the laws of
Mississippl, and did thereby wilfully deprive
Michael Henry Schwerner of rights, privileges and
immunities secured and protected by the Constitution
and the laws of the United States, namely, the
right not to be deprived of his life and liberty \ ek
without due process of law, the right and privilege /b~




to be secure in his person while in the custody
of the State of Mississippi and its agents and
officers, the right and privilege to be immune
from summary punishment without due process of
law, and the right to be tried by due process of
law for an alleged offense and, if found guilty,

to be punished in accordance wﬂfh the laws of the

State of Mississippi.

"In violation of Section 242 of Title 18 of the
United States Code,

THIRD COUNT

MAm Av ahAirt Thaima 21 1a8h T Machnha Crrirmvder
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Mississippi, and within the Southern District of
Mississippi, Lawrence Andrew Rainey, Sheriff of
Neshoba County, Mississippi, Cecil Ray Price, deputy
sheriff of Neshoba County, Mississippi, Richard
Andrew Willis, a patrolman of the Police Department
of Philadelphia, Mississippi, Bernard L. Akin,
Jimmy Arledge, Horace Doyle Barnette, Travis Maryn

n1 T =1 v T
Barnette, Olen Lovell Burrage, James T. Harris, Frank

J. Herndon, James E. Jordan, Edgar Ray Killen, Billy
Wayne Posey, Alton Wayne Roberts, Jerry McGrew Sharpe,
Jimmy Snowden, Jimmy Lee Townsend and Herman Tucker,
while acting under color of the laws of the State of
Mississippi, did wilfully assault, shoot and kill
James Earl Chaney, an inhabitant of the State of
Mississippl, then and there in the custody of Cecil
Ray Price, for the purpose and with the intent of
punishing James Earl Chaney summarily and without

due process of law and for the purpose and with the
intent of punishing James Earl Chaney for conduct

not S0 punishable under the laws of Mississippi, and
did thereby wilfully deprive James Earl Chaney of
rights, privileges and immunities secured and protected
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by the Constitution and the laws of the United States,
namely, the right not to be deprived of his life and
liberty without due process of law, the right and
privilege to be secure in his person while in the
custody of the State of Mississippi and its agents
and officers, the right and privilege to be immune
from summary punishment without due process of law,
and the right to be tried by due process of law

for an alleged offense and, if found guilty, to be
punished in accordance with the laws of the State of
Mississippil.

"In sdolation of Section 242 of Title 18 of the
United States Code.

FOURTH COUNT

"On or about June 21, 1964, in Neshoba County,
Mississippi, and within the Southern District of
Mississippi, Lawrence Andrew Rainey, sheriff of
Neshoba County, Mississippi, Cecil Ray Price,
deputy sheriff of Neshoba County, Mississippi, Richard
Andrew Willis, a patrolman of the Police Department
of Philadelphia, Mississippi, Bernard L. Akin, Jimmy
Arledge, Horace Doyle Barnette, Travis Maryn Barnette,
Olen Lovell Burrage, James T, Harris, Frank J. Herndon,
James E. Jordan, Edgar Ray Killen, Billy Wayne Posey,
Alton Wayne Roberts, Jerry McGrew Sharpe, Jimmy Snowden,
Jimmy Lee Townsend and Herman Tucker, whle acting under -
coloxr of the laws of the State of Mississippi did

" wilfully assault, shoot and kill Andrew Goodman, an

inhabitant of the State of Mississippi, then and there
in the custody of Cecil Ray Price, for the purpose and _
with the intent of punishing Andrew Goodman summarily - i .
and without due process of law and for the purpose and
with the intent of punishing Andrew Goodman for conduct
not so punishable under the laws of Mississippi, and did
thereby wilfully deprive Andrew Goodman of rights,

5622
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privileges and immunities secured and protected by
the Constitution and the laws of the United States,

namely, the right not to be deprived of his life and

liberty without due process of law, the right and
privilege to be secure in his person while in the
custody of the State of Mississippi and its agents
and officers, the right and privilege to be immune
from summary punishment without due process of law,
and the right to be tried by due process of law
for an alleged offense and, if found guilty, to be

punished in accordance with the laws of the State of

Mississippi.

"In violation of Section 242 of Title 18 of the

United States Code.

United States Attorney

"Special Agtorney
Department of Justice

"A TRUE BILL:

Foreman of the Grand Jury
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ARRTST OF DEFENDANTS NAMED IN
INDICTMENT

‘ ' On Jenuary 15, 1985, warrants for the sirest of
2TRLRD L, AXIN, JDMMY ARLEDGE, EORACE DOYLE BARNETTE,

TRAVIS MARYN BARNETTE, OLEN LOVELL BURRAGE, JAMES T. HARRIS,
RANK J. HERNDON, JAMES E. JORDAN, EDGAR RAY KILLEN, BILLY

! “Z POSEY, CECIL RAY PRICE, LAWKENCE ANDREW RAIKEY, ALTOXN

; ROZERTS, JEZRRY MO GREW Sk RPE, JIdEY SFOWDEN, JIdMMY LEE
TCWNSLND, HERMAN TUCIE: end RICEARD AXDREW WILLIS were issuad
by Clerk of the United States District Cocurt, Jackson,
Migsissippi. All of the zbove-mentioned defendants, with
the exception of EORACE DOYLE BARNETTE and JAMES EDWARD .
TORDAYN, ware arvested con Janvary 16, 1965, by Deputy '
Un-ced States Marstezls and erraigned before United States
Cor—i:zsioner ESTEER CARTER at Meridian, Mississippi, who

e A

On January 18, 1965, EORACE DOYLE BARNEITE was
arrested by FBI Agents at Shreveport, Louisiana, and arraigned -

before United States Commissioner at Shreveport, Louisiana,
t2o releasad BARNZTTE on $5,000 bornd. :

On January 18, 1965, JAMES E, JORDAN voluntarily
appeared at the Atlenta Oifice in response to Bench Warrant
for Arrest issued on January 15, 1955, in the Southern
District of Mississippi. '

He was taken before U. 8. Commicsioner FRANK A.
BOIDEN, Norchern District of Georgia, Atlenta, Georgia, by
Szzcial Agent Comnissioner EOLDEN set
bond in the amount or 9, , permitted JORDAN to sign his
own bond without surety, and JORDAN was released with instructions
that he should appesr before the U, S. Distriet Court for the

L9135

Scuthern District of lissiscippi at Meridien, ‘issisgsippi, when

so crlered., bA-

-2
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MOTIONS FILED BEFORE UNITED STATES DISTRICT
JUDGE HAROLD J, COX

The following motions were filed by attorneys for
the Defendants in the murder of the three civil rights workers,
SCHWERNER, CHANEY and GOODMAN, before United States District
Judge HAROLD J. COX, at Jackson, Mississippi:

l.

Moticn to dismiss for lack of jurisdiction,
as indictment does not allege a crime
cognizable by the Laws of the United States,

Motion for additional time in which to prepare
motions. '

Motions for severance.

-Motion to suppress search warrants.

Motion for jury trial,

Motion to dismiss because evidence and informa-
tion is not supported by facts and was obtained
unlawfully, since Defendants were taken to
Meridian Auxiliary Naval Station, held incommuni-
cado without right to counsel, intensely
interrogated, subjected to being exhibited as
commont criminals before newspaper reporters,
hundreds of cameramen, etc., who exhibited them in
a prejudicial manner to the public to the extent
they have been publicly tried and convicted by
newspaper and television media to the extent that
their right to a fair and impartial trial has been
abrogated without their consent. .

Motion to dismiss on basis that the attorneys other
than the regular United States Attorney and his
Assistants were permit ted to go before the Federal
Grand Jury which returned indictments, that indict-
ments were obtained by undue force and payment of
money by Agents and Officers of the Federal Govern-
ment, and {f it had not been for evidence so _

13

cQ 25 gt




IN 44-1

7. - Continued:

produced, the Defendants would not have been
indicted.

Motion to require production of evidence.

Moticn for bill of particulars.

14



~ PRE-TRIAL HFARINGS, JANUARY 25 to 27,
1965, AT MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI

States Distxict Judge HAROLD COX, Southern District of

In connection with Sigsfrial pleadings before United

Mlssissippi, on January 25 to 2 1965, at Meridian, ‘Mississippi,

“Pepartmental
Tmotions were

i
f
ke

Attorney ROBERT YWEN advised that the following
heard and argued) D, C'

Motion for severance. M\ .-

LSS
RAMAS A
A motion for severance for Horace Doyle.
Barnette was granted by U. S. District

Judge HAROLD J, COX.

Motion to suppress search warrants.

In connection with this motion, testimony
was presented by Special Agents of the

FBI HENRY L, MC CONNELL and JOHN H. KRESEK,
who testified concerning thelr service of
a search warrant August 4, 1964, on OLEN
BURRAGE, who 1s the owner of Burrage Dam.

Special Agent of the FBI JAY COCHRAN, JR.
testified regarding entries by Bureau Agents
and excavating equipment on BURRAGE's prop-
erty August 4, 1964, to effect the exhumation
of the bodies of the three civil rights workers,
SCHWERNER, CHANEY and GOODMAN, who were buried
in BURRACE's dam, In connection with this
motion, Defendants' attorneys directed specific
questions to COCHRAN concerning reconnoitering
conducted by Agents on BURRAGE's property prior
to August 4, 1964, which was the date of serv-
ing the search warrant on BURRAGE. :

Special Agent JOHN H. PROCTOR, JR, testified
concerning the terrain searches conducted on
BURRAGE's property prior to August 4, 1964,

and concerning the survey of the access road

to the BURRAGE property, which road was employed

in bringing the earth-moving equipment to Lucﬁ)

damSiteo
15 g -4




Inspector JOSEPH A. SULLIVAN testified con-
cerning radio transmissions from Burcau
automobiles and his coordinating the service
of the search warrant on OLEN BURRAGE with
thz entries of personnel and equipment to
the OLEN BURRAGE farm,

3. Motion for dismissal of indictments against the
Defendants on the basis they were prejudiced by undue
publicity afforded in the preliminary hearing.

The Defendarts called as thelr witnesszes Navy
personnel \which included Commanding Officer,
_Captain J&h\gﬁh IAMS; Exscutive Officer,
VLT ; Commander RO 'Ré\§?1GﬂT; Legal Officer,
[ ' Lieutenant RAYNMAIDN.IN; a Lieutenant DAVID
; T:\giLLSEY;'and :\Sgaman by the name of ROBERT S,
? v FAITH, - EM-3.

No rebuttal testimony was presented by the
Governmant, '

Judge COX reserved decisiors on these motions until a
later unspecified date.




ARRAIGNMENTS OF DEFENDANTS BEFORE U. S. DISTRICT
JUDGE_HAROLD J, COX AT MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPL

27

On January 8, 1965, seventeen (17) Defendants,
BERNARD L, AKIN; JIMMY (NMN) ARLEDGE; HORACE DOYLE BARNETTE;
TRAVIS MARYN BARNETTE; OLEN LOVELL BURRAGE; JAMES T. HARRIS;
FRANK J. HERNDON; EDGAR RAY KILLEN; BILLY WAYNE PCSEY; CECIL
RAY PRICE; LAWRENCE ANDREW RAINEY; ALTON WAYNE ROBERTS;
JERRZ MC GREW SPARTE; JIMM: SNOWDEN; JIMMY LEE TOWNSEND;
HERMAN TUCKER; and RICHARD ANDREW WILLIS, appeared before
U, S. District :dge HAROLD J. CCX for a hearing, at which
tirs the Deferdants entercd pleas cf not guilty.

Judge COX ruled the Defendants could remain free on
bonds of $5,750 each. COX stated he would set the date for
D=ferdants' trial after ruling on the mctions presented to
him by the deferse attorneys.

17 he



N Lhel

The contents of the Ozder to Transfer the Cause as
to JAMES E. JORDAN from the Southern District of Mississippi
to the Ncorthern District of Gecrgia, for plea of gullty or
rolo ceontendere 1s set forth az follows:

IN TEE UNTTEZD STATES DISTRICT COJRT
SCUIHIEN DISIRICY OF MISSISSIFPL
EASTERN DIVISION

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
VS. CRIMINAL KO. 5215

CECIL RAY T2121,
JAMES E. JORDAN, ET AL

This day this cause carme con for hearing on request
of the deferdant, James E. Jovdan, for a waiver of trial
ard for trarsfer of th: said cause as ts James E, Jordan
from the Scuthern Diztrict c¢f Mississippli to the Northern
District of Georgila for a plea cof guilty oz nolo conteundere,
and it appearing unts the Court that James E. Jordan was
duly arrested in the Ncrthsrn District of Georgia and has
consented to disposition of said cause ‘against him in the
district in whi:th he sas arrestied, and the Urited States
Attorneys fcr each of said districts have approved said
transfer, the Court is of the opinion and finds that said
cause as to Jzres E. Jordan should be trarsferred in accord-
arce with R:ile 2C ~f the Rules of Criminal Frocedure.

It is, thorefore, ordered that the Clerk of the United
States District Court for the Soutkern District of Miesis-
sippi be ard she is hereby avthcrized to transmit by United
States mail certified copies of the original papers in this
roceedirgs as they pertain to James E. Joxdar to the Clerk
of the United States District Court for the Northern District
of Georgia at Arlanta,Gecrgla.

CRDERED this the 26th day of January, 1965. ;o
' > —00
/s/ BHarold Cox hqq&bj
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE '

18 8
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On February 24, 1965, U. 8., District Judge HAROLD COX,
Southern District of Mississippi, Jackson, sustained Defendants'
nctions to dismiss indictments charging Defendants with violation
of Section 241, Title 18, U. S. Code,

The opinion rendered by Judge COX is set forth below:

"UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF MISSISSIPPIL
EASTERN DIVISION

- “"CRIMINAL NUMBER 5215

"CNITED STAIE3S OF AMERICA PLAINTIFF
V.

CECIL RAY PRICE, BERNARD L, AKIN, JIMMY
ARLEDGE, YORACE DOYLE BARNEITE, TRAVIS

MARYN BARNETTE, OLEN LOVELL BURRAGE, JAMES

T. HARRIS, FRANK J. HERNDON, EDGAR RAY KILLEN,
BILLY WAYNE POSEY, LAWRENCE ANDREW RAINEY,
'ALTON WAYNE ROBERTS, JERRY MCGREW SHARPE,
JIMMY SNOWDEN, JIMMY LEE TOWNSEND, HERMAN

TUCKER, RICHARD ANDREW WILLIS DEFENDANTS

"The named defendants move to dismiss this indict-
ment for failure to state an offense against the laws of
the Urited States. The indictment is predicated upon 18
U.S.C.A. 8241, The first paragraph of the indictment states
that Rainey was sheriff, Price was deputy sheriff and that
Willis was a police officer, each acting at all times under
‘""color of laws" of the State of Mississippi. The statute
mentions nothing about '"color of law" in the description of
the crime embraced therein. The indictment charges that
from January 1, 1964, to December 4, 1964, the named
defendants in the Southern District of Mississippl conspired
-'to injure, oppress, threaten and intimidate Michael Henry
Schwerner, James Earl Chaney and Andrew Goodman, each a
citizen of the United States, in the free exercise and S
er.joyment of the right and privilege secured to them by the *|"
Fourteenth Amerndment to the Constitution. of the United States
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JN 44-1

"not to be deprived of 1ife or 1liberty without due process
of law by persons acting under color of the laws of
Mississippi.' The third paragraph of the indictment
states that it was the plan and purpose of such conspiracy
thar said victims would be released by said officials from
the county jail and that the individual defendants would
irtercept said released prisoners 'and threaten, assault,
shoot and kill them.' This entire offense is said to have
been ccmmitted in Neshoba County, State of Mississippi,

irn viclation of said S241.

"This statute was designed and intended solely
focr the protecticon of federally created rights, not for
ary right merzly guaranteed by the laws of the United
States. This is not a statute which makes murder a
federal crime urder the facts and circumstances in this
case. The right of every person not to be deprived of his
life or liberty without due process of law is a right that
exisced prior to the Fzderal Constitution, It is a right
which is protected by state laws and is merely guaranteed
by the Constitution of the United States.

"In United States v. Cruikshank, 92 US 588,
there was an indictment under S6 of the Enforcement Act
of May 31, 1870, appearing as 16 Statute At Large 141,
which 1s similar in many respects to S$241 here, The Court
said: ‘'The third and eleventh counts are even more
objectionable. They charge the intent to have been to
deprive the citizens named, they being in Louisiana, "of
their respective several lives and liberty of person
without duve process of law." This is nothing else than
alleging a conppiracy to falsely imprison or murder
citizens of the United States, being within the territorial
jurisdiction of the State of Loulsiana. The rights of
life and personal liberty are natural rights of man. "“To
secure these rights,'" says the Declaration of Independence,
"governments are instituted among men, deriving their just
powers from the consent of the governed." The very highest
duty of the States, when they entered into the Union under
the Constitution, was to protect all persons within their K
boundaries in the enjoyment of these ''unalienable rights ¥ ot
with which they were endowed by their Creator." Sover- .
eigrty, for this purpose, rests alone with the States. It

- 20 - LJ]QS "BL
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""is ro meore the duty or within the power of the United

Srates tc punish for a conspiracy to falsely imprison or

rurder within a State, than it would be to punish for
false impriscnment or murder itself.

"The Fourteeanth Amendment prohibits a State
rom depriving any person of life, liberty or property,
withovt dus process of law; but this adds nothing to
the rights of cne citizen as ggainst another. It
simply furnishes an additional guaranty against any
encrrachment by the States upon the fundamental rights
wRich belong to every citizen as a member of society.'’

|m

"The irdictment at bar is clearly void under
ding of Williams v, United anfaa, (RFA\ 179

I i VA T4

very similar indictment in this circuit. Tuat opinion
makes abundantly clear the infirmities which are
icherert in the irdictment here. That decision was
rendered on January 10, 1950,

"On April 23, 1951, in United States v.
Williams, 341 US 70; 71 S.Ct, 581, the Supreme Court
of the Urited States affirmed that decision. Among
other things, the Supreme Court in that case said:
'All the evidence peints to the same conclusion: that
S241 applies only to interference with rights which
arise from the relation of the victim and the federal
government, and not to interference by state officers
with rights which the federal government merely guaran-
tees from abridgment by the states. ***Nor does the
defined crime have as an ingredient that the conspir-
acy be under color of State law. Crimiral statutes
should be given the meaning their language most obvi-~
ously invites. Their scope should not be extended to
ccnduct not clearly within their terms, We therefore
hold that including an allegation that the defendants
acted under color of State law in an indictment under
S§241 dces not extend the protection of the section to
rights which the Federal Constitution merely guarantees
against abridgment by the States. Since under this

- 2] - F{g}
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ictment must fall,

rmad !

"'interpretation of the statute the in
C

sta i
the judgm:int of the court below is aff

Srnl

e O

"The Congress has known of that decision now
fcr approximately fifteen years and has acquiesced
therein as a proper construction of S241.

"Here we have fourteen private individuals and
three officials as defendants. The defendants are not
charged with the violation of any right which was con-
ferred upon either of these victims by a federal law.

It is of no consequence, therefore, in law that some of-
the defendants were officials and that some of them were
merely private citizens In allegedly committing the
offense charged. The motion, like a demurer of old,
adr.its fcr the purpose of this hearing all matters and
things well pled in the indictment, but contends that
even 50, they are not charged with an offense against
the United States., The authorities cited and found
upon independent research support the soundness of this
positier. The indictment surely states a heinous crime
against the State of Mississippi, but not a crime
agairst the United States. This is a court of limited
jurisdiction. The United States has no common law.
Section 241 must be and is the sole and exclusive expon-
ent of the offense set forth in this indictment. The
irdictrent simply does not charge either of these defen-
dants with any offense against the laws of the United
States, The motions to dismiss this indictment against
the named defendarnts will, therefore, be sustained.

"There are several other motions presented by
these defendants pursuant to a previous order of this
Court, but action on such motions is unnecessary by
reason of the disposition of the foregoing motions.
Such other motions, therefore, may be withdrawn or will
be overruled., A judgment accordingly may be presented.

"February 24, 1965 "/g/ Harold Cox
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE"

iy
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On February 25, 1965, U. S. District Judge HAROLD COX,.
Southern District of Mississippl, Jackson, sustained in part
and overruled in part Defendants' motions to dismiss indictments
in viclaticr of Secticn 242, Judge COX' opinion 1is set forth
as follcws, along with his rulings regarding other motions
~veaerted by Defendarts' attorneys:

"UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF MISSISSIPPI
EASTERN DIVISION

"CRIMINAL NI'MBER 5216

"UNITED STATES OF AMERICA PLAINTIFF
v,
CECIL RAY PRICE, ET AL DEFENDANTS

On Janvary 18, 1965, the defendants were
ordered to file all motions to be filed herein on or
before Janvary 25, 1965. Those motions have been filed
and presented and will be presently decided.

"l. The defendants move for sixty days
additional time to prepare and file motions and sup-
porting affidavits. That motion is without merit and
will be overruled.

"2. The defendants move to dismiss the
indictment because of widespread adverse publicity and
because they were photographed and pictured through the
news media of the country as criminals. There was,
indeed a great amount of sensational writing and numer-
ous pictures of these defendants which appeared in many
of the newspapers within the state and on television
stations within the state and in other states. This
unusual circumstance was taken into account by the
Court iIn its supplemental charge to the grand jury who
were expressly instructed to completely disregard all qq%

- 23 -
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'"mews stories and all clamor from the outside, and to fairly
and justly and honestly decide,.each for himself, solely
from the evidence and testimony presented to them in. the
grand jury room as to whether or not probable cause
existed for indictment. The grand jury was admonished

to vote thelr own honest and sincere and consclentious
convictions on that question solely from the evidence and
testimony before them under oath in the grand jury room.

. This was a veryintelligent and a very fine grand jury,
composed of a good cross section of citizens from .the
entire Southern Judicial District of Mississippi. It nust
be and is presumed that they did their duty in accordance
‘with those instructions. That some others throughout the
district may have formed an impression of some kind of
gullt or innocence of these defendants does not show any
prejudice in the mind or on the part of these grand jurors
i1n performing their official duties here. That motion

-1s without merit and will be overruled,

"3, - The defendants (except Jordan) move to
dismiss the indictment for fallure to state an offense
against, or a violation of any 1aws of the United States.
- The indictment is in Hur counts, -The first count is
- for the conspiracy under 18 U.5.C,A..8371 to violate
18 U.5.C.A,. 5242,  .Six overt acts in furtherance of such
cohspiracy are stated, The second, third and fourth
counts. charge all of the defendants ‘with a violation of
18 U,.S.C.A, S242, Lawrence Andrew Rainey was sheriff,
Cecil Ray Pricé‘was deputy sheriff and Richard Andrew
~Willis was a police officer of the municipality at all
material times, The other defendants were'at all times
- private individuals and so acting, Surely, Section 242
was a valid law of the United States at such time, The
indictment states and the motion for its purpose admits
that two or more of them conspired to violate this law
of the United States on this occasion, It is immaterial
to the conspiracy that these private individuals were not
acting under color of law at such time so as to be vulner-
able to 5242, They are not charged with having'violated

524Z but are cnargea with nav:l.ng consp:l.reu to violate
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"zaid act, That is a crime agalnst the United States
urder 8371, The second, third and fourth counts charge
that the official defendants willfully did things that
deried ard deprived their alleged victims of federally
created rights, It is charged that the individual
dzferdants like wise participated in the offenses
charged in the second, third and fourth counts of the
irdiztmert, but 1t is not charged as an ultimate fact
that they f(cr either of them) did anything as an offi-
-1al urder cclor of any law, statute, ordinance,
regulavion, or custom as S242 provides and as a violation
thereof would require, The irndictment states that three
cf the deferdarts weve actirg as officers in all that
they did, but then does not state or indicate that any
cf the cther Individual defendants were officers in
fact, or defacto in anythirg allegedly dore by them
‘urd:zr coler of law.'

"it 1s accordingly the view of this Court that
the first ccunt of this irdictment is valid against all
d:ferdants befove the Court; that the secend count is
valid against Rainey, Price and Willis but not against
the cther defzndarts; that the third count is valid
against Rairey, Frice and Willis but not against the
other dzferdants; and that the fourth count is valid
against defendants Ralney, Price and Willis but not
the other defendants upon the authorities presently
cited,

"In Williams v, Urnited States, (5CA) 179 F.2d
€56, a private detective was indicted and convicted
undar S242 for applying third degree methods to a victim
while investigating a theft from a private concern. A
city policeman was present at the scene of the offense
ard lent colcr of law to the event., The detzctive held
a card from thes Director of Public Safety showing his
appointment as a special police officer of the munici-
pality. A secction of the charter of the city provided
that rio person should be appointed a special police or
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"derective, evcept under the direction of the Chief of
Police for a specified time, There was substantial
cvidernce that Williams impersonated an officer and acted
under cclor of law, He was found guilty of the charge
by a jury and his conviction was affirmed. The case was
appealed to the Supreme Court of the United States where
it was affirm=d. The Supreme Court on appeal in Williams
. "rited States, 341 US 97; 71 S.Ct, 576, observed that
the indictment charged that petitioner acting under color
of law used force to make each victim confess to his guilt
ard implicate others and that the victims were denied the
right t~ b tvied by due process of law and if found
guilty to be sentenced and punished in accordance with
the lays of that state., The Court quoted from Count 2
cf the irdictmert which charged violation of the Four-
teenth Amszndment rights as follows: 'The right and
rrivilege nct tc be deprived of liberty without due
process of law, the right and privilege to be secure
in his perscn while in the custody of the State of
Flcrida, the right and privilege not to be subjected to
puﬂisHcht without due process of law, the right and
rivilege to be imrmune while in the custody of persons
actirg urder color of the laws of the State of Florida,
from illegal assault and battery by any person exer-
cising the authority of said state, and the right and
privilege to be tried by due process of law and 1f found
guilty to be sentenced and punished in accordance with
the laws of the State of Florida.' The trial judge ad-
menished the jury that the defendants were 'not here on
trial for a viclation of any law of the State of Florida
for assault' nor 'for assault under any laws of the
United States.' The Supreme Court thus affirmed said
conviction and approved such application and use of $242
to those facts and circurstances. It is thus made crystal
clear that the defendants in this case who were officers
and were allegedly acting willfully under color of law
as charged in the indictment are vulnerable to the offense
charged in $242. To same effect is United States v.
Jonies, (5CA) 207 F.2d 785. Likewlse in Kcehler v, United
States, (5CA) 189 F.2d 711, the Court affirmed a convic- .,
tior of a constable and his co-worker who violated §242 |0
by the viclating of federal rights of a victim under color
of law. Ir that case Ackerman was not a mere private
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citizen but was adeputy or assistant on duty in all that
was done 1In violation of S$242, The motion to dismiss thus

adrits all things well pled in the indictment and results
ir. the inescapable conclusion that the county and city

=il wenw LARLERSA Sl St R b Db ek L Ll AL LIL

cfficials who are defendants are legally charged with a
virlation of S242 in this indictment.

In Brown v. United States, (6CA) 204 F.2d 247,
Browm was ccrvicted of violating 18 U.S.C. S371. The
aprellant was charged with violation of $242 but such
charges agairst him were dismissed by the Court because
he was a private individual and not an officer acting
vrder crler of law as in Cormonwealrh of Virginia v,
Rives, 100 LS 313; United States v. Cruikshanks,
92 'S 542; Screws v. United States, 325 US 110, 65 S.Ct.
1033, The Ccurt said:

"The district court dismissed the substantive
cocunts which charged appellant with violating 5242
but submitted the conspiracy count to the jury.
This acticn was clearly correct. *%%*The fact that
appellart was a private citizen and legally incap-
able =f violating S242 does not render him immune
from a charge of violating 18 U,.S.C, S371 by engag-
irg in an agreement with a law enforcement officer
acting under color of state law to violate 18 U,S,C.
S§242, united States v. Holte, 236 US 140; 35 S.Ct.
271, 59 L.Ed., 504. As declared in Chadwick v.
nited States, 6 Cir.,, 141 F. 225, at page 237,
opirion by Judge Lurton: "It is sufficient if any
ore of the parties to a conspiracy is legally cap-
able of conmitting the offense, although the other
parties may not have been.'" As was stated in
Urited States v, Trierweiler, D.C., 52 F.Supp. 4,
at page 7:

"It is immaterial that they themselves may

rot have had the capacity to violate the sta-
tute for they became liable criminally if they
conspired to violate that statute and if one or
mcre cf their fellow conspirators had the
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onclusion are Koehler v. United
Zd 711; Apodaca v. United States,

In accord w
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Court said in United States v. Rabinowich,

.« 682: 'That a conspiracy to commit a

nt offense from the crime that 1is the
crnspiracy. Callan v. Wilscn, 127 US 540;
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"It ig accecrdingly the view of the Court that
the first count of this indictment is valid against all
deferndants; that as to the remaining counts in the indict-
ment, all ¢f them are valid against the official defendants,
but invalid against the private individual defendants therein.
The mction to dismiss the indictment will thus be sustained
in part and overruled in part as indicated.

"4. Burrage moves and Price, Akin, Killen, Posey,
Rainrey, Rcberts, Sharpe, Townsend, Tucker and Willis join
him in requesting under Criminal Rule 41l(e) that the search
under the warrant be adjudged unlawful, and that the property
taken be adjudged to have been 1llegally seized without
warrant, or that the warrant be adjudged insufficient on
its face, cr that the property selzed is not described in the
warrant, cr that there was no probable cause for the issuance
of the warrart cr that the warrant was illegally executed.
Evidence was adduced before the Court on this motion, The
contenticrs and the evidence somewhat overran the bounds of
the motion. Some nebulous testimony before the Court was
to the effect that government agents with permission had
been on open land searching for some clue to the whereabouts
of three humar bodies. No search was made of any improve-
mer:its on the 'Jolly lands' now belonging to Burrage. No J
case of an unreasonable search or seizure is shown. Much }95
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"of the descripticon in the affidavit and warrant is void
but the descri ption of the premises known as the "01d Jolly
Farm' under control of Olen Burrage in the north half of

Neshoba Courity in the Southern District of Mississippi is
sufficiernt for all purposes. The objects of the search
vere sufficiently stated. The affidavit of an FBI agent
sufficiently set forth grounds for probable cause which
vere effectually adjudicated to exist by the issuance of
the subsequent warrant. Hester v. United States, 265

3 A ) ¥ JEpI. . - o e A Y
U.S. 575 44 S.Ct. 445. Monnette v. United States, (5CA)
- ~ - -
220 7000 8270 M s:iarh wairart desciibed the premises

t~ be searched as the "Wld Jolly Farm' under control of
~l-r Byvwrage, This rlace consisted of twe bundred fifty
acres, It had formerly been owned by Jolly and was the
enly place of such kind in the county under control of
Burrage. The description of the premises to be searched

was sufficiently clear to enable an officer with reason-

1 * .
able effort to asceytain and identify the place to be

searchzd, That is the rule and the test. The warrant
clearly stated that the search was for the bodies of

the thre¢e identified victims., This warrant was served
ar 8-12 M A'I'D"Ifai' ll 10‘[1 nnr\r\v’r‘{ncr +n TRT noantal

Woe diw snghip g b\&ul— e WY \-\'vl-u‘-l-la L & AF A usgl‘bc

testimony supported by memoranda made at the same moment
as an cfficial recorxrd. The Court believes from the evidence
that the gcvernment agents acted with full authority under

thigs warrant in doine all that was done on sald date toward

A A wh R - ‘U-I-ll. LAGA Vol 0l K K LR oF B4 A Nl ST A

searching fcr and discovering these bodies. This evidence
was not illszally cbtalned and the prccess therefor was
valid. This motion to suppress is without merit and will

be overruled
"5. The defendants mcve for a production of

eviderce under Crimiral Rule 16, The two motions seek
material to vhich they are not entitled under this rule

L= N = T s e e mm Ll Tar kLl b e SRS e e Rl e e @

The motion dees not bring the request within the ambit of
the rule. The motions will be overruled.

"6. The defendants seek a bill of particulars
under Criminal Rule 7(f). An indi tment is required by
Cririnal Rule 7(c) to contain 'a plain, concise and definite 9:’
39"
=" I
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"written statement of the essential facts constituting the
offerise charged.' It is not necessary to allege with tech-
nical precisicn all of the elements essential to the com-
mission of the offense which is the object of the conspiracy.

Ir. Werg Tai v, United States, 47 S.Ct. 300, it is said: 'In

charging such a conspiracy certainty, to a common intent,
sufficient to identify the offense which the defendants
cor.spired to commit, it is all that is necessary.' There
the defendants sought as here to discover the government's
evidence to which the Court said that the defendants were
nct et itled. A defendant in a criminal case may not resort
~ to a motion for a bill of particulars as a discovery device.
Tr Var Tiew v, "pited States, 321 F.2d 664, the Court in
this circuit said that it is not the office of a bill of
particulars to ascertair what offense 1s charged. 1In
Jchnson v, United States, 207 F.2d 314, the Court in this
circuit said: 'The government should not be compelled by

a bill of particulars to give a detailed disclcsure of its
evider.ce, as would have been required by compliance with

the meticn.' The indictment here contains a sufficiently
definite written statement of the offense to enable the
deferdants to properly and fairly present thelr defense
thereto, It is likewise sufficiently definite and clear to
fecrestall any possibility of double jeopardy. The motion is
without merit and will be overruled.

"7. Numerous motions are presented by the defen-
dants for severance urder Criminal Rule 14, Criminal Rule 8
authorizes the joinder of offenses and of defendants under
stated circumstances. Criminal Rule 14 vests the Court
with a sound judicial discretion to grant such relief as may
be necessary in any case to assure a falr trial for each
deferdant. Opper v. United States, 75 5.Ct. 158, Nothing
has been presented to the Court to convince it that a sever-
ance of any other defendants, other than Horace Doyle
Barnette who has already been severed from this proceeding,
is necessary in this case. But under the circumstances it
would appear to be fair and just that all of the defendants
be first tried under the first count of this indictment in

Wy W
113
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Cass No, 5216, and that the trial of the official defendants
urder Count 2, Count 3 and Count 4 should be next tried.

Th: mition will thus be sustained in part and overruled in
part as irdicated.

"8. The defendants by separate motlons request
a trial by jury. Those motions will be sustained.

"A judgment dispcsing of said motions as indi-

cated may be rresented for entry.

"/s5/ Zarcld Cox
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE"

. \ES/\ i~
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II. COMPENDIUM CONCERNING RICHARD
ANDREW WILLIS, PATROLMAN,
PHILADELPHIA, MISSISSIFPI,
POLICE DEPARTMENT
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RICHARD ANDREW WILLIS

r1cHARD ANDREW WILLIS, |- o149 vhice

male, is currently employed as a police officer on
t+ha PhiladaInhia Micedeacdnnd Paldra Nanaritmane 1L?ﬂ
Loy = I-le-a-l-l“\-&rl.l.-l-u ? LI&UGLUOLPVJ-’ & WA A UGPGL WL L g ™

Since his tenlire - on the Philadelphia,

X ey

l.'u.aa.l.aa.l.yy.l., Folice ut-:pdi.l..mt:ul., WILLI5 has been the
subject of numerous Civil Rights complaints, one
complaint which resulted in an indictment by a

Federal Grand Jury which convened in September and
~Ll InLl —te DL .2 BEAL o L e S e
October, 1964, at Blloxi, Mississippi.

As a result of this indictment, WILLIS was
arrested on October 3, 1964, for violation of Title 18,
Sections 242 and 371, United States Code, and was
taken before the United States Commissioner at
Meridian, Mississippi, who released him on $1,000
bond, WILLIS advised at the time of his arrest that
he did not wish to make any statement.
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The following investigatlon was conducted by SA

—at Jackson, Mississippl.b
on July 29, 1964,meterans
Administration Center, Route 51, made avallable e file on
RICHARD ANDREW WILLIS,
519
The file contained the following information:
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION AND INTERVIEWS
WITH JAMES EDWARD JORDAN
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FD-302 (Rev. 1-25:40) FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION '

1 January 22, 1965

Date

JAMES E, JORDAN conferred in the Atlanta Office of
the FBIY with Departmental Attorney D, RCBERT CWENS, Chief,
Southwestern Reglon, Civil Rights Division, U. S. Department
nf Justice, U. S. Attorney CHARLES L., GUODSON, Northern
District of Georgia, and ALLEN L, CHANCEY, Assistant U, 8.
Attorney, Northern District of Georgia, JDORDAN was advised
at the outset by Mr, OWENS of his right to counsel, that he
was not required to make a statement, and that any statement
he made may be used against him., No threats or promises were
issued to Mr, JORDAN, Mr. OWENS explained that the purpose
of the conference was to determine whe ther or not JORDAN desired
to sign a consent to plead guilty or nolo centendere and
transfer his case under Rule 20, Federal Rules of Criminal
Procedure, from the Southern District of Mississippi to the
Northern District of Georgia and, if so, whether or not he
desired counsel prier to making thils decisicn, The provisions
of Rule 20 of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure were
fully explained to JORDAN by Mr. OWENS,

Mr. JORDAN stated that he did net desire counsel
and that he desired to sign a conscnt to transfer his case for
ples vad sentence under Rule 20 frcoam the Southern District of
Misgi-sippi to the Northern District of Gecrgia. Mr. JORPAN
the.: : igned the Consent to Transfer Case for Plea and
Sent- .ce,

o L6 -5

<
Bk
on 1/22/65 ot Atlanta, Georgia File § Atlanta 44-1633
- 20 cackson 44.--1
SA's and
by b Dote dictated 1/22/65

This document containe neithar recommendations nor conclusions of the F‘BIAG the property of the FBI and is loaned to
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

1 - | : Date__DeCEmMber 24, 1964

ma
any statement, that any statement he did make could be
used against him in a court of law, that he had the right
to an attorney before making any statements or that he
could talk to anyone else, and that if he eould not sfford

the services of an attorney the judge would appoint one
for him, furnished the followlng information:

v

o)

., AT 44.1633

Flis#

12-22-64 A
: ~Of _

v 5% Y *50:

Date dictated 12-23-64 ’Ol({

This document contolns nelther recommendations nor conclusions of the FBIL. 1t & the property of the FBl ond is lccnod o your agency;

Rand I con!u\h are not io be disiributed oumids your ogancy. A"
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FD-302 (Rav. 13340 FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Date __Decerber 30, 1964

JMTS EDVARD :ronnm,,q
>=tccted and intexvievszd by Sis ’

JORDAN had

px ously been int rviewe! an! was awarelgf tha
ieartisien of Sto AN

JORDZN was sgcain edvised that he did not have
to make any stataments “and that any statements he made
could be used agzinst him in @& eowrt of law and that
he had a right to consult with an attorney before
wekine any statemsnt, No promises of immmnity from
ar: est or prosecution were made to JORDAN, SA
irformad JORDAN of the above inforceztion. JORDAN
advisaed that he wzs not presently represented by counsel
and did not desire to consult with counse¢~p*ior"to- [ A
the interview.

[ ]

JORDAN's entire signsd statemant of November 5,
was gone over with him at which time he again
3 that informztion furnishad by him in the signed
wint was accurate and truthful to the best of his

- JORDAN azain sbtated that he was rot physically
prasent wien the victims SCEWEUNTR, GOODMAN, and CHANEY
wzra shot on the gravsl road off Highmay 18, claiming
thet he was on foot on Highway 19 at the time of the
ghootings.

- g | IN B4-1

12/28 /5L c,—_____.-m,g AT 44-1633

‘ate dictated 12/29/6&
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He estimated the distance to be possibly 200
yaris or less, again claimirg that he was within hearing

disvence of the shootings as well as being able to hear
souncs of the car motors.
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PD-302 (Rev. 10-11-63) ()

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Date__ January 15, 1965
1 __ _
JAMES _E RDAN was interviewed“
at which time he was made aware o
t entdty of the iInterviewing agent. JORDAN was advised

that he did not have to furnish any information and any
information he did furnish could be used against him in a
court of law. No threats or promises were made to JORDAN

to get him to furnish any information and he was advised
that he had a r'lal-\f' tn an nf'f‘n'r'np}r of his owm choice befor

Tl WRAR LA R e oA R A

making any sta ment.

p0

on  179-65 ——_Eg"'# Jackson 44-1

.__-——_b?c’ - =3 r= \!)1\3

by Special Agent NN - - K2 Oate dictated___1-16-0)

this documen! contains neither recommandations nor conclusions of the FBI. 1l is the property of the FBI and is loanad to your agency;

% and It conlents ars not lo be distributed outside your agency. 5% b ,)
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FD-302 [Rev. 10-11.63} (,

- FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Date January 15, 1965

1 .
JAMES EDWARD JORDAN was contacted in the Jury Room,
U.S, Post Office Building, Jackson, Mississippi. He was
advised by Special Agent of the identity of Inspector
and Special Agen both of
the FBI. JORCAN was advised that he did not have to furnish
any information and any information he did furnish could be
used against him in a court of law. No threats or promises
were made to JORDAN to get him to furnish any information
and he was advised that he had a right to an atterney of his
own cholce before making any statement. A7’

on 1-11-65 Jackson, Mississippi s Jackson 44-1

at

Inspecto

1Y%

D
Date dictated____1=15-65 |

This decument contains neither recommaendotions nar conclusions of the FBL it is the properly of the FBI ond is louned o your agancy;
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Iv. SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION CONCERNING
HORACE DOYLE BARNEITE
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FD-302 (Rev. 1-25-80) FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

1 | 12/1_5/34

Date

was advised by Specia
of the identity of SBpecial Agent
know, and was advised by Special Agent
have to talk to FBI Agents, that anything
used against him in a court of law, and th
attorney before making any statement. ‘

whom he did not
that he did not
say could: be

(e
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e
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ch
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12710064 TN 2. MO 44-2221 BEy,

File

On

SAts nd b% 53
P Date dictat

- 13/10/64
by g / ,

This document contains neither tecommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It {s the property of the FBI and is loasned to
_ . womr gosncy; it aod its contgnts are not to be distributed ouinide Your agency.
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FD-302 (Rev. 1-25-40) F.. ERAL BUREAU OF mvesrlcuton-f;‘;;)

- . Date __ 1/15/85

norace povre earNerTE, W
furnished the following information after advising he knows
the identity of interviewing Agent and being advised he does
not have to make a statement, my statement he does make

- can be used against him in 2 court of law, and ho can gee
& lawyer before making any statement:

voss SR ..., % w586l
sADEEEENNY @ cjo s
by b7 55 Date dictoted 1/6/85

Thiz document contuins nefther recommendations nor cenclusions of the FBl. It is the property of the FB! ound is loaned
your agency; it and its coatents are not to de distributed ocutalde your agsncy.
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H

h FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Date _ 1-12-65

b=

HORACE DOYLE BARNETTE was interviewed in a witness

room at the Federal Buildinii Jacksonl Mississiiiil-

on 1-11-65 o Jackson, Mississippi File # JN 44-1
SA
7C-
by — SA b ‘ Date dictated —1=12-65
This document conl.aini neither recommendations nor comil_gs_igl.:f the f‘_B_I‘._ 1 is the property of the th-;"ll” loaned t

Ty iy Ed o B Rl el o md e o e A B N AN . e
o= BETGCY, it and its contonis are mot W UD QIRIIVIAGD DR SIOE yOUur agency.
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D302 Mev. 10-11-£3} {

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

i Date 1’1!“‘65

District o! !!Bsissi pl

8 gremen 0
to as a Speclal

tion: L7¢

Deputy U. S. Marshal, Southern

Shed the Tollowing
who identifled himself
ederal Bureau of Investiga-

"January 11, 1965
Jackson, Mississippi

p Deputy US Marshal, Southern

Dist. of Mississippi, J ke the following

voluntary statement to who has

identified himself to me as a opeclal Agent of the FEI. b2
“While on duty at Jackson, Mississippl, at about

2:30 PM on Jan. 11, 1965, I engaged HORACE DOYLE
BARNETTE in conversation,

é
!

1
C .

on_ 1-11-65  ,, Jackson, Mississippi Filog. JN 4b-1

Y 14
bv___"r 5{,1)01. dictated 1-14 65

1
This document contains nelther recommaendotions nor conclusions of the FBI It is the property of the F3! ond is loaned W tQur agency;

# and its contents are not to be disiributed outside your ogency. -
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PD-302 Rev. 10-11.23} l’

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

1 Dote. 1-14-65

Deputy U. S. Marshal, Southern

District of Missiksippl volufitarily Turnished the ToIlowIng
signe tement to who identified himself
to 8 a Speclal Agent o ederal Bureau of Investl-
gatlion: b7C

“"January 11, 1965
Jackson, Miss,

"1,— Deputy US Marshal, Southern
Dist. of Mise., Jackso 88, e the following
voluntary statement to%ﬂho has identi-
fied himself to me as a Speclal Agent of the FBI. b7C

"While on duty at Jackson Mississippi, at about
2:30 PM on Jan. 11, 1

some comments

1-11-65 o Jackson, Mississippl I JN 84-1

s» [ - o 1-13-65 1107

L
Y

On

[+ 8

This documan! tontains neither recommaendations nor conclusions of the ﬁlq i the property of the FBl ond is loaned ¥ your agency;
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FD-302 {Rev, o -11-£3)

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Date _1-22-85

i

Deputy U. S, Marshal, Shreveport,
rnished the following intormation: 522

Lculsiana,

“mm

BARNETTE engaged in conversation.

b7C, 670

On _1-18-65 at _ Shreveport, Louisiana _ Fije # _JIN 44-1

e [1d
by _ /bab/kg Date dictated 1- 13‘6510

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of t 5‘;1. it is the property of the FBI and is loaned to

your agency; it and its contents are not to be distribited outside your y r/ _
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1 _ Date __November 13, 19064

furnished the following

nformation:

—,BARNE'I‘I‘E drove & blue and white

Ford, believed to have been about a 1957 or 1958 model,

with Louisiana tags. It could not be recalled as to
specifically which part of the car was white and which was blue
but 1t was definitely recalled the car was blue and white.

The car body was of a sedan type.

On 11/11/64 ., Meridian, Mississippi File #
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V. INFORMATION CONCERNING JIMMY (NMN) ARLEDGE,
DEFENDANT IN THE ABDUCTION AND MURDER OF
THE THREE CIVIL RIGHTS VICTIMS.




The following invegtigation was conducted by SA_

¢ §g z.]—ﬂl' o

On November 13, 19G4, the files of the County Clerkls
Office were reviewed and on Eage 215, Volume 83 of the Marriage
Necords for Lauderda County, 1t was determined that JIMMY
ARLEDGE and MARY JANE \JORDAN were issued a marrlage license ahd
wergggarried'August 10,\1961, in Lauderdale County, Mississippi.
JIMMYARLEDGE was described as a white male, borm March 1, 1937,
at Uniok, Mississippl. His residence address was shown as
Route 2, Little Rock, Mississippl. His occupation was given as

Door Department, Acme Building Supply Company$ his father and mother
were identified as MACK and LESLIE ARLEDGE

N d & el e WA G4 N LA &N i dbi it Wi

The 1964 editlon of the Meridian, Mississippi, City
Directory, reflects that JIMMY ARLEDGE, wife MARY JANE ARLEDGE,
residence 2718 Valley Street, Meridian, Mississippl, was employed
as a driver for the Magnolla Steel Company. o :

The 1962 Meridian, Mississippl City Directory lists
JIMMY ARLEDGE, identifying him as a stock clerk for the Meridlan

Cicar and Mabaces Commanvy,
l‘-‘b“‘ CAR & WA o A

e N B WA RARALE T & .

¢, b70

On November 17, 1964, and again on November 18, 1964,
spot checks were conducted at the residence of JIMMY ARLEDGE
and at the Magnolia Steel Company, his place of employment. The
automoblle belonging to ARLEDGE, a 1962 white Corvalr, two-door
sedan, bearing 1965 Mississippi license 51B687, was observed
on both days at the Magnolia Steel Company, On the evening of
November lgf 1964, this car was also observed in front of the

residence at 2718 Valley Street, Meridian, Mississippi.
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INFORMATION CONCERNING BERNARD L. AKIN,
DEFENDANT IN THE ABDUCTION AND MURDER
OF THE THREE CIVIL RIGHTS WORKERS
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He was advised prior to the interview by S
that he did not have to furunish any information to the
that any information furnished by him could be used against
him in a court of law. He was advised that he had a right to
counsel before furnishing any 1nformation and that no threats,
promises or duress would be made to induce him to mkke any
statement whatsoever.
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VII. INFORMATION CONCERNING OLEN LOVELL BURRAGE,
A DEFENDANT IN THE ABDUCTION AND MURDER
OF THE THREE CIVIL RIGHTS WORKERS
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

fos

Dote__J8NUBYTY 9, 1965

Photographs were taken of OLEN BURRAGE's place of
tusinecss directly across the road from hils residence at Route O,
Philadelphia, Mississippi.

Tyjo_black and white photographs were taken by
SA—-::!.th a Speed Graphic Camera. 74

Eﬁa iiﬂck and white photographs were taken by SA
with 2 Polarold camera. .,
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